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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: First of all, my

          3  name is Wendell Foster, I'm

          4  Chairman of the Committee on Parks. To my immediate

          5  left is Council Member Speaker Vallone, and to my

          6  far right is Council Member Golden from Brooklyn,

          7  Frank Neeley, our General Practotem, and to my

          8  right, immediate right, is our attorney Mr. Pers.

          9  Other Council Members will be coming in later.

         10                 Today's hearing of the Committee on

         11  Parks, Recreation, Cultural Affairs and

         12  International Intergroup Relations will consider

         13  four proposed local laws recognizing the

         14  contributions of various New Yorkers to the life of

         15  our City by naming streets in their honor.

         16                 Each of these New Yorkers gave of

         17  themselves to improve the quality of our lives,

         18  providing legacies that will be recognized, and will

         19  live on, through these honorary street designations.

         20  These proposed local laws are: Intro. No. 798,

         21  introduced by Council Members Nelson, Berman, Henry,

         22  Abel, Golden and Oddo; also Council Members Dear,

         23  Fisher, O'Donovan and Robles. In relation to a

         24  street name, P.O. Kenneth Hansen Way, Borough of

         25  Brooklyn.
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          2                 Intro. No. 868, introduced by Council

          3  Members Foster; also Council Member O'Donovan. In

          4  relation to a street name, Andrew Robinson Place,

          5  Borough of the Bronx.

          6                 Intro. No. 877, introduced by Council

          7  Members Provenzano, Abel and Golden; also Council

          8  Member O'Donovan. In relation to a street name, Ray

          9  Cilento Place, Borough of the Bronx.

         10                 Intro. No. 885, introduced by the

         11  Speaker, Council Member Vallone, and Council Members

         12  Foster, Berman, Carrion, Dilan, Eisland, Abel, Fiala

         13  and Golden (in conjunction with the Mayor) and 14

         14  co-sponsors, in relation to a street name, John

         15  Cardinal O'Connor Way, Borough of Manhattan.

         16                 It is particularly appropriate that

         17  we will today recognize the contributions of John

         18  Cardinal O'Connor to the spiritual life of our City.

         19                 Cardinal O'Connor's love for this

         20  City, and for all of its people, was manifest in his

         21  tireless efforts to provide a better life for the

         22  poor, the aged and the infirm. He will not be

         23  forgotten.

         24                 May I say that what we do here is

         25  very often people beat up on us for renaming
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          2  streets, but I feel personally it's a small

          3  contribution we can make for and to people who have

          4  given so much to our City. Many of the streets that

          5  you now have here, you don't even know why they were

          6  named. For instance, Wall Street is Wall Street

          7  because when they first named it, it meant the

          8  Africans and African-Americans could not be buried

          9  beyond that wall, so there is no need to glorify

         10  that. But there are people, such as Cardinal

         11  O'Connor, Mr. Robinson, the Police Officer, and

         12  others, that we ought to lift up.

         13                 And, so, what we do not do, we do not

         14  take existing streets down, we simply add an

         15  additional name, so that people, relatives, friends

         16  and others may recognize that we recognize that they

         17  were worthy people to be honored in this fashion and

         18  in this manner.

         19                 We are going to begin testimony this

         20  morning by hearing from our Speaker, Peter Vallone,

         21  in reference to the Cardinal John O'Connor Bill.

         22                 Mr. Speaker.

         23                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you very much,

         24  Mr. Chairperson and Ken Fisher and Marty Golden and

         25  other Council Members will be joining us very
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          2  shortly.

          3                 First of all, before I forget, I just

          4  received a call from Mary Ward, Cardinal O'Connor's

          5  sister, in which she wants to thank you and the

          6  members of the Committee saying, quote, it is a

          7  great honor for me and my family that you are doing

          8  this for my beloved brother. She would love to be

          9  with us today, but unfortunately cannot be, and she

         10  joins in testimony that Sandi Merle -- I'm not sure

         11  Sandi is here. She is, good. And she will be

         12  testifying in a little while.

         13                 Let me say, Mr. Chairman, I very

         14  rarely sponsor name changes in the City. This may be

         15  more than in the two decades that I'm here, maybe

         16  the third time that I'm doing something like this,

         17  but when you have a person like John Cardinal

         18  O'Connor, who literally lifted our City spiritually,

         19  not just for Roman Catholics of which he was our

         20  Pastor, but for all people who believe in the

         21  dignity of a human being, and in the possibility

         22  that a human being has Divine potentials.

         23                 John Cardinal O'Connor, the first

         24  time that I really met him was when he, at my

         25  request, came to City Hall, shortly after I was
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          2  elected Vice Chair, as you may remember, because you

          3  were right alongside me, Wendell, when we changed

          4  the policy of the homeless in this City, in which we

          5  said we no longer want to warehouse human beings, we

          6  were going to try to help human beings and find

          7  transitional ways of getting them back into the

          8  mainstream of life and finding out if a person is

          9  homeless isn't the answer to find a home? And before

         10  you found a home, wouldn't it be to find out what

         11  was the problem in the first place as to why a

         12  person or a family were homeless? And John Cardinal

         13  O'Connor stood here next to me and next to you,

         14  Wendell, first offering a prayer, and then welcoming

         15  those people who we made members of the Homeless

         16  Assistance Commission, to begin the process of

         17  actually helping a person getting back into the

         18  mainstream of life.

         19                 I was asked by a reporter would John

         20  Cardinal O'Connor like this? I said definitely not.

         21  He never wanted to be honored in any manner shape or

         22  form, he was a very humble man, and a person he

         23  thought that any honors would go to his principal,

         24  which who labored in a different world than the one

         25  we find ourselves in. I said, no, he wouldn't like
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          2  it. He wouldn't think it was necessary, and he

          3  probably would have said it was a waste of time

          4  because there are so many others that deserve honors

          5  before him. And that was his great mark, as far as

          6  I'm concerned, his humility. And I said to the

          7  reporter that, no, this wasn't for John Cardinal

          8  O'Connor, this was for those of us left behind, who

          9  wanted to have some memory of a truly great man, a

         10  person who actually changed the lives of so many, a

         11  person who labored in the vineyards, a person who

         12  spent his spare time going to AIDS victims and

         13  comforting them and holding them and going to people

         14  who were losing their lives on this earth,

         15  explaining to them there was another life waiting

         16  for them, a far better one.

         17                 So, he doesn't need any honors, he

         18  has all the honors that could possibly be given,

         19  because I believe he is in that eternal paradise

         20  where there is no more suffering, and where there is

         21  only love, but I believe it's more important for us.

         22                 I was there this morning, it just so

         23  happened that I went to mass at St. Patrick's

         24  Cathedral this morning, and I traveled along 50th

         25  Street, walked along 50th Street, alongside his
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          2  residence, and said wouldn't it be nice to be able

          3  to look up and see a sign saying John Cardinal

          4  O'Connor Way.

          5                 What was his way? What was his life?

          6  What was his like? Could it serve as a model for

          7  others? Every single breath of my body is, yes, it

          8  should serve as an example. It should serve as a

          9  reminder. It should serve 100 years ago, that the

         10  more than 15 years a great representative of God

         11  resided here, dedicated his life to serving others,

         12  and that life should be a momento and remembrance

         13  for others to follow.

         14                 So, I very enthusiastically, and, as

         15  you know, very rarely, sponsor this name change and

         16  ask the Committee to vote in the affirmative, after

         17  the hearings are concluded.

         18                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Speaker.

         21                 Before I call on our first witness, I

         22  was amazed that Cardinal O'Connor had such a good

         23  memory. I met him a number of times, as Mr. Vallone

         24  mentioned, we came down here, but when he took a

         25  walk with us in the Highbridge section where I live,
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          2  and we built some new houses there, a lot of them,

          3  he stood on the steps of the Sacred Heart Church and

          4  reminded me that I lived only a block from the

          5  Church. I had never told him my address, and he

          6  thanked me for all I did in helping to get the new

          7  homes built and relocating people, and he didn't

          8  have to do that. There was no call for it, except it

          9  was just like Cardinal O'Connor to recognize people

         10  and say thank you, in a very humble way, as the

         11  Speaker said.

         12                 We honor ourselves in doing this.

         13                 Sandi Merle, would you come, please,

         14  and identify yourself for the record, and begin your

         15  testimony?

         16                 While you're doing that, I failed to

         17  recognize Council Member Povman from Queens, and

         18  Council Member Fisher from the Borough of the Bronx.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Brooklyn.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Brooklyn, excuse

         21  me. Well, he should move. Everything stops in the

         22  Bronx. Thank you.

         23                 Ken, don't move until after the

         24  election, all right?

         25                 Thank you. Excuse me, would you
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          2  please? Thank you.

          3                 MS. MERLE: Speaker Vallone,

          4  gentlemen, good morning. I am Sandi Merle, mother,

          5  grandmother, Jewish New Yorker, member of the Roman

          6  Catholic/Jewish Dialogue of New York, but the label

          7  I wear proudest is "Friend of His Eminence, John

          8  Cardinal O'Connor."

          9                 It has been said by Rabbi Paul Hait,

         10  Executive Director Emeritus of the New York Board of

         11  Rabbis, and I quote: "Five hundred years from now,

         12  John Cardinal O'Connor will have achieved

         13  immortality through Jewish History. Any historian

         14  writing about life in the 20th century will have to

         15  take account of John Cardinal O'Connor for the

         16  blessing he brought to the Jewish people.

         17                 How appropriate that you have chosen

         18  John Cardinal O'Connor Way, rather than street or

         19  avenue, for as it is said of the Hebrew Torah, and

         20  as it will be remembered of Cardinal O'Connor, "It's

         21  ways are ways of pleasantness and all is paths are

         22  peace."

         23                 Recently, there has been a great deal

         24  of publicity regarding a bill passed into law and

         25  signed by Governor Pataki in July 2000, the
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          2  Abandoned Infant Protection Act. Cardinal O'Connor

          3  was involved with that idea when it was no larger

          4  than a mustard seed.

          5                 From his pulpit he would plead:

          6  "Bring them to me. Bring them to 452 Madison

          7  Avenue, just don't hurt them!"

          8                 Together he and I presented a concept

          9  for the bill to District Attorney Robert Morgenthau.

         10  Less than a year later, our concept became law. And

         11  now, 452 Madison Avenue, is where the Cardinal's

         12  sign will be displayed.

         13                 An historic affiliation between two

         14  hospitals, half a world part, Assaf Medical Center

         15  in Israel and Our Lady of Mercy Medical Center in

         16  New York, was the last idea on which we

         17  collaborated. Initiated in the spirit of

         18  reconciliation, healing and the exchange of

         19  brilliant medical minds in fields of neonatology and

         20  pediatric rehabilitation, (we have since added

         21  oncology). The affiliation stands as part of the

         22  Cardinal's legacy and will be dedicated to him in

         23  Israel next month, on May 14th.

         24                 Whether it was the Hole See's

         25  recognition of the State of Israel, or an
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          2  inter-religious prayer service in his Cathedral for

          3  the disenfranchised in New York, Cardinal O'Connor

          4  was the good Shepherd.

          5                 Whether it was healing spiritual

          6  wounds of anyone he met along the way, or friends of

          7  all faith groups who reached out to him for help,

          8  whether it was tending to the physical and emotional

          9  wounds of AIDS patients for whom he provided both

         10  space and care at St. Clair's Hospital on New York's

         11  west side, he was the good Shepherd. Good Shepherd

         12  to all of us... Of every faith.

         13                 He taught us long ago, that the

         14  wonderful and holy values we share, are such much

         15  more important than any differences.

         16                 I assure you, the list is endless.

         17  But most remarkable about this Prince of the Church

         18  and giant among men was his humility and his common

         19  touch which endeared him to all New Yorkers.

         20                 What you will achieve by your actions

         21  today is to give opportunity to people of all walks

         22  of life, people not fortunate enough perhaps to be

         23  able to visit his crypt or even to see his

         24  photograph, to have a place to go where they can be

         25  told once there was a man, a holy man who saw us all
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          2  as equals. He thanked us. He loved us. He asked God

          3  to bless us. He was our friend. And most assuredly

          4  and most importantly, he was God's friend.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: That sounds just

          7  like Rabbi Hiatt. He, too, has been a good Shepherd

          8  to this City for many years.

          9                 Mr. Speaker.

         10                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Sandi, I just wanted

         11  to say that that was beautiful, and very, very

         12  appropriate, and I can see why Mary Ward wanted you

         13  to be, wanted to join in that statement, and I

         14  appreciate it very, very much, because I think it

         15  described John Cardinal O'Connor excellently.

         16                 MS. MERLE: Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I think, Mr.

         18  Speaker, also, after that statement, we need not

         19  explain why we do these things. That was said

         20  beautifully.

         21                 We've been joined by a person from

         22  the Bronx, Council Member Provenzano. Those of us

         23  who live in the Bronx realize that you who live in

         24  other parts of New York City must come by us in

         25  order to get in and get out, so we pride ourselves

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  from being from the Bronx.

          3                 Any questions, Council Members, to

          4  Sandi?

          5                 Nothing, all right. Speak later then.

          6                 Next Intro. Council Member

          7  Provenzano, the good Book says the last shall be

          8  first, and the first shall be last, since you were

          9  the last to come in we are going to do you first.

         10  First, that is, after the Cardinal.

         11                 Would you explain your bill, please.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'm glad

         13  you told everybody who I am since I don't have a

         14  nameplate.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Sergeant, did you

         16  hear that? They lost it. Let's cancel the hearing

         17  then, until we find it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Oh, a new

         19  one. Someone is collecting name plates, so...

         20                 It's my pleasure to be here this

         21  morning to honor Ray Cilento. I think we also have

         22  some distinguished guests who will speak.

         23                 Ray Cilento lived in my part of the

         24  Bronx. He was a long-time community resident,

         25  community activist, and probably not long enough. He
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          2  was a fairly young man when he passed on.

          3                 He played an important role in the

          4  labor movement. He was not an elected union leader,

          5  but he was the man on the front line. He led many

          6  battles in activities, initiatives, rallies, union

          7  meetings, and campaigns for over three decades.

          8                 He worked under the guidance of many

          9  great union leaders, and became an important man

         10  behind the scenes. He was responsible for

         11  coordinating many rallies, picket lines, events, he

         12  was the Council representative to many government

         13  organizations, committees, and served as a liaison

         14  to elected officials. He was, for about ten years, I

         15  believe, he was solely responsible for coordinating

         16  the annual Labor Day Parade.

         17                 It was his responsibility to make

         18  sure the parade went off smoothly, and I remember

         19  this year, just before the parade when we had the

         20  rally, many of the union people expressed how much

         21  they missed him on that particular day, because his

         22  absence was sorely and solemnly noted.

         23                 He was involved in many community

         24  organizations, Pelham Parkway Little League, the

         25  Tenants Association of his building. He was married
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          2  for 32 years, he raised two children. He was a

          3  dedicated community and union activist, and he will

          4  be sorely missed, and is truly deserving of this

          5  honor. And I am pleased today to support adding the

          6  name Ray Cilento Place to Lydig Avenue, between

          7  Williams Bridge Road and Yates Avenue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

          9  Council Member.

         10                 We have here to testify on this bill

         11  a good friend of ours, Brian McLaughlin. Brian,

         12  would you come take your seat and identify yourself,

         13  please? You don't really need an identification, but

         14  there may be a stranger in town from Outer Space.

         15                 If there are others here to testify

         16  on any of these intros, just raise your hand and the

         17  Sergeant will give you a -- Sergeant, right there,

         18  please.

         19                 Brian, would you be kind enough to

         20  identify yourself and begin?

         21                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: Good morning, Mr.

         22  Chairman. My name is Brian McLaughlin, I'm the

         23  President of the New York City Central Labor

         24  Council, AFL-CIO. I'm very pleased to be here this

         25  morning, and here before your Committee.
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          2                 I want to take time to recognize a

          3  good friend and one of the most outstanding leaders

          4  in the history of our City with regard to public

          5  policy, Speaker Peter Vallone, and the opportunity

          6  to address all of the distinguished members of this

          7  Committee this morning.

          8                 If the Chair would permit one thing

          9  that I would like to do, not coming prepared, is to

         10  say just a word on John Cardinal O'Connor, if I

         11  could, because I'm so delighted that the Speaker

         12  took this initiative this morning.

         13                 John Cardinal O'Connor was a personal

         14  friend of mine, and someone I work very closely with

         15  as the short time president of New York City Central

         16  Labor Council, but for many years on many events,

         17  important to the poor, the downtrodden, the

         18  forgotten, and the voiceless in our City, and I

         19  think the honor that we bestow upon his memory and

         20  for his family and for his legacy in our City is

         21  something that should be done, and I'm very

         22  delighted, Mr. Speaker, that yourself and the

         23  Chairman and the members of this Committee have

         24  conducted this hearing this morning, and we move

         25  this honor and his memory forward.
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          2                 One of the things I think that should

          3  be said for the record, though, is that we just read

          4  a lot in the newspaper about the census, and the

          5  tremendous growth and diversity in our City, and

          6  John Cardinal O'Connor was someone who was probably

          7  the single greatest champion for the immigrants in

          8  our City, to make sure that the discrimination kind

          9  of hatred, the bigotry, and the fear that comes with

         10  being often associated with being an immigrant is

         11  something that the Catholic Church, the labor

         12  community, and all of us who want to lift human

         13  beings and make stronger families. He stood for all

         14  those things, and he did it, as Mr. Speaker said,

         15  out of great humility and I'm just delighted to add

         16  my voice here today in support of that resolution,

         17  and I really thank you for the honor to say a few

         18  words on that, as well, and take an additional

         19  moment or two.

         20                 This morning we have prepared remarks

         21  and I think Councilwoman Provenzano said very aptly

         22  a little about Ray Cilento. And I thought about it

         23  sitting here this morning, I think it's the greatest

         24  tribute that we could give Ray Cilento, is to have

         25  this street change name on the agenda the same day
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          2  as John Cardinal O'Connor, because in many respects

          3  they shared a lot of similar traits.

          4                 Ray Cilento was the most selfless

          5  individual that I know in the trade union movement.

          6  Many of our associates took the time to come down

          7  and be here today, some of his co-workers and his

          8  family, who I'll introduce you to his family later

          9  on, but Ray Cilento came into the trade union

         10  movement at a very young age, and he quickly

         11  recognized the protections of collective bargaining,

         12  what it meant to have a better wage and a shorter

         13  work day, what it meant to have the dignity of a

         14  pension, and health care benefits, and from the time

         15  that Ray Cilento became a member of Local 3IBW, he

         16  was a volunteer in the union for many, many years, a

         17  decade or so before I even met him.

         18                 When I became involved in the

         19  activities of New York City's Central Labor Council,

         20  Ray Cilento was there, and I saw all the Committee

         21  assignments he had and the work that he did, I

         22  thought he was on the staff, I thought he was paid

         23  staff. He worked at night, from eight at night to

         24  four in the morning. He would often arrive at the

         25  office in the morning at 10:00, on many, many
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          2  occasions he put in a full day, and the assumption

          3  was he just must have been part of the staff.

          4                 The fact is, is that Ray Cilento for

          5  many, many years volunteered his time to help other

          6  working people have the opportunities that he had

          7  and the protections of collective bargaining.

          8                 He worked with other unions trying to

          9  organize minorities and immigrant workers into the

         10  ranks of organized labor. He walked on pickett

         11  lines, stood up when the fence of justice or

         12  breaking down barriers was necessary - Ray Cilento

         13  was there. He was an unparalleled rank and file

         14  member, not educated through our university system,

         15  but educated in the school of hard knocks as

         16  realistic enough to know that what he had is

         17  something that should be shared with many others.

         18                 In the testimony that will, if it is

         19  not distributed to the Council members it will be,

         20  talks about his work in Local 3, his ascendancy from

         21  a painter and a digger to a journeyman electrician

         22  and a supervisor, well respected by the companies he

         23  worked with in addition to the men and women that he

         24  worked with. But as he is at the Central Labor

         25  Council, this is someone who sat on many occasions
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          2  with John Cardinal O'Connor, and sat with Mayors and

          3  sat with Governors and sat with Presidential

          4  candidates, and did the kind of public policy work

          5  on behalf of working people that many people command

          6  six-figure salaries for. He did it because he

          7  believes in it, he did it because he believed that

          8  strengthened people, strengthened families and

          9  strengthening families built stronger communities.

         10  Ray Cilento believed deeply that building stronger

         11  communities made for a better City.

         12                 He was a voice for the many that had

         13  no voice. He was someone that took the underdog and

         14  tried to build them up, not knock them down. He

         15  worked with many who had a less than exemplary life,

         16  and put his arm around their shoulder and tried to

         17  share some of his experience and his knowledge with

         18  them, and during that process lifted them as well.

         19                 So, I think today, what I can say as

         20  the President of the New York City Central Labor

         21  Council, that we are going through a period of

         22  renaissance in advocating for the voice list, and

         23  for the low-wage workers and those without the

         24  protections that they deserve in the workplace, that

         25  all of what we should be doing is exemplified best
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          2  in individuals like Ray Cilento, a rank and file

          3  worker, who dedicated hundreds and hundreds of hours

          4  monthly to helping others, to lifting others, to

          5  helping to organize others, to working on behalf of

          6  those ideals that we felt strongly about, and I

          7  think there is no greater individual that we know in

          8  the labor movement who is better loved, higher

          9  thought of, whether it be public policy-makers,

         10  co-workers, all the rank and file, than Ray Cilento.

         11                 And I want to thank Madeline

         12  Provenzano, Councilwoman, for this gesture, because

         13  I think in recognizing Ray Cilento, we recognize the

         14  best in people. We recognize that all of us can make

         15  a contribution. Ray didn't just make contributions,

         16  he actually developed other young people who live

         17  today and carry out his work, because he took the

         18  time to train them, to encourage them, to inspire

         19  them, that it's not what you learn, it's not what

         20  you look for, to be compensated, it's what we should

         21  be doing to carry out God's work and to help people

         22  enjoy life the way that they're entitled to for the

         23  hard work that they do in exchange. So, Mr. Speaker,

         24  Mr. Chairman, and Councilwoman Provenzano for her

         25  leadership, and all of you on the Committee.
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          2                 I conclude my remarks just by saying

          3  that on behalf of the Cilento family, we are joined

          4  by his son Mario, who is the Public Relations

          5  Director for the New York State AFL-CIO, his wife

          6  Andrea Curo, now Andrea Curo-Cilento, who is working

          7  for the United Food and Commercial Workers, it is a

          8  union family you can see. His wife Aurora couldn't

          9  be here, but on behalf of the entire family, I just

         10  want to say how grateful that they are as well that

         11  someone who labored in the vineyard and championed

         12  on behalf of working men and women for so many

         13  years, would be honored in this way by the City

         14  Council to have this lasting memory placed in his

         15  honor in the community that he provided so much

         16  service to as well for many decades of his life.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         19                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you, Brian.

         20  And thank you for introducing the members of the

         21  family.

         22                 Before you go, I just want to say, as

         23  much as Cardinal O'Connor is looking down on us, I

         24  think the words that you use in your statement, just

         25  one line, I will quote into the record, "he poured
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          2  his energy and his heart into his work as a devoted

          3  volunteer for all who labored." I thought that was a

          4  great way, that could have just as easily been

          5  describing John Cardinal O'Connor and I think that

          6  your statements were very appropriate.

          7                 I knew Ray, and he was a great guy,

          8  and a selfless person, as you indicated. Very

          9  similar to -- that's the way John Cardinal O'Connor

         10  would have like to have been described, and I think

         11  it is very appropriate and very correct that we do

         12  honor him, the City does honor him, again, as a

         13  model for others to follow. So, thank you very much.

         14                 MR. McLAUGHLIN: Mr. Speaker, thank

         15  you.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Brian.

         18                 Mr. McLaughlin is a very busy man. He

         19  is also one of our great State Assemblymen. You're

         20  doing a great job in every way.

         21                 Mr. Messina, would you come, please?

         22                 Now, I understand that the son is

         23  here. How many relatives are here? Would the

         24  relatives just please stand, even though you may not

         25  want to testify, because I want it in the record,
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          2  because as long as there is a City called New York,

          3  it will be on the record that you came and spoke for

          4  your dad. So, if you are interested, any family

          5  members, you just come and after he's finished say

          6  I'm in favor, all right? Or if you care to testify,

          7  you may do so.

          8                 Mr. Messina, would you please begin

          9  your testimony.

         10                 Thank you, again, Brian.

         11                 MR. MESSINA: Thank you very much. My

         12  name is Thomas Messina, and I'd like to welcome the

         13  Council. I am proud to have Madeline Provenzano my

         14  Councilwoman, and the Speaker.

         15                 I'm proud to be part of this hearing,

         16  on behalf of a very close and personal friend of

         17  mine, Mr. Ray Cilento. I have known Ray over 20

         18  years. I first met Ray from my late father Al at a

         19  union function. My dad always talked about this kid

         20  Ray with such enthusiasm, and a good guy, and how he

         21  was such a plain old good guy who would do anything

         22  for his family, friends, union and community.

         23                 Ray and I became close friends, when

         24  I needed help in a community affair I would call on

         25  Ray. Ray and I shared a bond where Ray became like
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          2  family to me, and treated each other as such.

          3                 Whenever I needed help, involved with

          4  such things as the Halloween Parade in Throggsneck,

          5  the Veterans Holiday Lights, the Santa Trailer for

          6  the kids, and numerous other community events, Ray

          7  was there.

          8                 When Ray was given the huge task to

          9  head up the magnificent Labor Day Parade that all of

         10  New York enjoyed, he rose to the occasion and the

         11  parade was bigger and better than the previous year.

         12                 I'll never forget the time the lights

         13  went out at the hockey rink in Morris Park, and I

         14  called Ray. Ray had volunteers there within an hour

         15  and a half to make sure everything was working. This

         16  showed the respect people had for Ray.

         17                 Ray often spoke proudly of his family

         18  who were the loves of his life, especially his new

         19  granddaughter Jessica, who he said made his life

         20  complete. I consider Ray Cilento one of the finest

         21  people I have ever met in my entire life, and that

         22  includes a lot of fine people.

         23                 Ray has always been a great friend,

         24  leader, and above all, brother to me. I could go on

         25  and on with accolades and adjectives to describe the
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          2  impeccable style of Ray that Ray possessed, but I am

          3  sure you will hear a magnitude of praises from other

          4  family and friends who knew Ray Cilento.

          5                 So, I will close with these words:

          6  Please make every effort to rename Lydig and

          7  Williamsbridge Road between Yates Avenue Ray Cilento

          8  Place in the Borough of the Bronx in memory of a

          9  great humanitarian.

         10                 So, I thank you, Speaker Vallone, and

         11  the dais, and especially Madeline Provenzano, for

         12  introducing this bill. Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Messina. Thank you, also, for your written testimony

         15  to be entered into the record.

         16                 Before I hear from the Speaker again,

         17  we have been joined by Council Member Reed from

         18  Manhattan and the Bronx, and also Council Member

         19  Linares from Manhattan.

         20                 Mr. Speaker.

         21                 SPEAKER VALLONE: I want to thank Tom

         22  very much for that testimony, and I also, I met the

         23  family of Kenneth Hansen, who are here, and his

         24  brother is here also, and when we talk about police

         25  officers, we talk about the kind of job that they do
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          2  and we talk about literally risking their lives

          3  every day to try and make it safe for the rest of

          4  us.

          5                 Somehow, it just seems very

          6  appropriate also that it should fall on the same day

          7  as John Cardinal O'Connor's honoring.

          8                 I feel very strongly, as I know this

          9  family believes, that Ken is up there with John

         10  Cardinal O'Connor, probably looking down and saying

         11  this is not at all necessary, it's definitely not

         12  necessary to them, but I think it is necessary for

         13  us to remember the sacrifices that are made for

         14  people that we're honoring today on behalf of

         15  others. So, I wanted to make sure that my remarks

         16  were in the record also saying how much I think that

         17  this is also very appropriate, and I know that

         18  shortly before this tragedy happened, he saved

         19  someone's life just a few weeks before that, as I

         20  recall, and I think that that's what they do

         21  everyday, the unsung heros are the ones that get

         22  very little publicity, but are the ones that make

         23  this City, the State and this country, what it's all

         24  about.

         25                 So, I join also in Kenneth Hansen
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          2  Way, and it's probably very appropriate that we call

          3  it way, also, because that's the way of the truth in

          4  a life incident. So, thank you.

          5                 And before I leave, we have also the

          6  very first one on the agenda, we have Intro. 868 by

          7  Council Members Foster -- that's yours. In relation

          8  to a street name, Andrew Robinson Place, in the

          9  Borough of the Bronx. I know that you're going to --

         10  anything that you sponsor, Wendell, is always

         11  something that has some direct relationship with

         12  higher values, and higher principals, and, so, I

         13  join also in your sponsorship of Andrew Robinson.

         14                 Thank you very, very much. I wish I

         15  could stay, but unfortunately, I can't, I have to go

         16  back downstairs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I wish to thank

         18  the Speaker for the time he took to meet with us

         19  this morning. As you know, he runs the whole show,

         20  everything falls on his shoulders.

         21                 We thank you for coming, sir.

         22                 The family come now, please.

         23                 MR. CILENTO: I'm Ray Cilento's son,

         24  Mario Cilento. I don't have prepared remarks, but I

         25  want to thank --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You're in favor,

          3  though, that's all I want to hear.

          4                 MR. CILENTO: I want to thank Speaker

          5  Vallone, and particularly Councilwoman Provenzano,

          6  for this honor that you propose to place for my

          7  father. And on behalf of my family, my mother and my

          8  sister, my wife Andrea and my niece Jessica, I just

          9  really want to say that I think the honor that you

         10  give my father is a wonderful thing, and I think the

         11  other way that he is honored is by his friends that

         12  are here today and the lives that he touched over

         13  the years, and I think that's really the embodiment

         14  of why, how he was thought of and to the places that

         15  he aspired to go and to take everyone else.

         16                 So, I thank you for this wonderful

         17  honor on behalf of my family, and behalf of the

         18  friends of my father who loved him as if they were

         19  his family.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. CILENTO: So, thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Okay, are there

         24  any others here, you may just come and call your

         25  name and say you are in favor, that's all, so you
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          2  will be on the record.

          3                 Any family members here or friends

          4  that would like to have your name listed?

          5                 Come on up, mention your name and say

          6  you are in favor, and then we will come back to the

          7  Police Officer.

          8                 MR. MANNO: Good morning, City

          9  Council, my name is Peter Manno. I know Ray for over

         10  20 years. There wasn't a day that we didn't talk to

         11  each other, and there would never be another more

         12  dedicated individual as Ray Cilento, not only the

         13  union movement, but to community activists, he was

         14  just involved in anything that was good for people,

         15  Ray Cilento was involved in it. So, I thank you for

         16  honoring him in this way.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Our next is Police Officer Kenneth

         20  Hansen. I'm sorry, please forgive us. Forgive me,

         21  rather.

         22                 MR. SHITAKE: Good morning, City

         23  Council members. My name is Tom Shitake (phonetic).

         24  I worked closely with Ray for probably the last 15

         25  years, and I just want to say thank you for this
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          2  honor, in honoring his memory, and I'm in favor of

          3  it. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          5  much for doing that.

          6                 Anyone else?

          7                 Yes, Mr. Linares. Council Member

          8  Linares.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes, thank

         10  you, Mr. Chair.

         11                 I just like to, after looking at the

         12  intro, I'd like to have my name as a prime sponsor

         13  of this legislation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: And I saw

         16  that he attended Roosevelt Hospital in the same

         17  decade that I attended. He graduated in '62, I

         18  graduated in '69. But we share the same

         19  neighborhood.

         20                 I had just arrived to this country

         21  from the Dominican Republic, and I probably

         22  benefitted tremendously from things that he did, and

         23  that's what makes New York City and every

         24  neighborhood in our City a great neighborhood, where

         25  there is always someone extending their hand to help
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          2  somebody else, so that they have opportunities. And

          3  I probably won't be here, not because of so many

          4  people in the neighborhood where I landed in the

          5  Bronx, and it's not because, you know, I learned

          6  English and I struggled going through high school,

          7  just after he graduated. So, I am proud to add my

          8  name to this legislation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Linares.

         11                 Council Member Golden, would you be

         12  kind enough to speak on Intro. 798?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: May I state,

         16  excuse me, Council Member Nelson is with the Mayor

         17  at a dedication of Gil Hodges street naming -- name

         18  rather.

         19                 Now, Mr. Golden, please forgive me

         20  for interrupting you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: That's quite

         22  all right. I thank you.

         23                 I would like to also thank the

         24  members of the City Council that signed onto this

         25  bill, as well as the sponsor, Council Member Nelson,
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          2  Berman, Henry, Abel, myself, Oddo, Dear, Fisher,

          3  O'Donovan, Robles, for their insight and foresight

          4  and understanding and working with the New York City

          5  Police Department to name this street after a great,

          6  great individual, a great person and a great police

          7  officer.

          8                 Very few people, when they hear about

          9  a police officer die in the line of duty, they

         10  generally see shoot-outs and scenarios where you see

         11  a uniformed cop in a shootout with a suspect or a --

         12  you don't really see what goes on with a 40,000 unit

         13  police department where officers from Transit or

         14  Housing or from Aviation or from Harbor, the units

         15  that they cover and the large mass of the City of

         16  New York that they cover, and this is specifically

         17  tragic because of the young age of this officer, and

         18  his family.

         19                 Obviously, I've never -- I, myself,

         20  come from a law enforcement family, this boy had the

         21  privilege of working with his brother, Sergeant

         22  James Hansen, who is here with us today, and working

         23  with his father, a retired detective, John Hansen,

         24  of 32 years, and he worked with his brother John at

         25  Harbor Charlie, and his fiance' Diane at George
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          2  Base. They were to be married, him and his fiance',

          3  back in 1991 in September, and he died on June 11th,

          4  in 1991.

          5                 He also worked in NSU 10, which is in

          6  61 Precinct, where I, myself, worked back in the

          7  early, mid-seventies, and that was a quiet but a

          8  tough command and it covered several precincts, and

          9  he had done an outstanding job receiving

         10  commendations and three meritorious citations and

         11  three excellent police duty awards. That in itself

         12  says that this officer was an active officer at a

         13  very young age, and he went on to be involved in

         14  saving parachuters, and two kiakers and a boater,

         15  several boaters from an overturned sailboat during

         16  the Operation Welcome Home Festivals the day before

         17  he died, and the day of his death he was out doing

         18  work within the New York City Police Department that

         19  would have led to the saving of more lives, had he

         20  been allowed to stay and work with his fellow

         21  officers and his family, but the Dear Lord God

         22  seemed fit to take him, that he had done and served,

         23  and greatly served, at a tender age of 26 years of

         24  age.

         25                 It's very, very tough when you lose a
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          2  son or a brother. I know how tough it is to use

          3  fellow police officers. Our warmth and love go to

          4  this family and to all the officers that served and

          5  worked with this young man, and I recommend, sir,

          6  that we name this street in honor of this great

          7  officer and this great family, and it's a tribute.

          8  God bless you, and God bless your son.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

         10  Council Member Golden.

         11                 We are going to call up Captain Tuffy

         12  and Ms. Judy Hansen, and while you're coming to take

         13  seats, I will remind you that a request for this

         14  Intro. came from the commanding officer Richard

         15  Kasmin. Just sit here and identify yourselves for

         16  the record.

         17                 And also from Mr. Nicus, Chairman of

         18  Community Board 15, is also in favor. We have also

         19  been joined by Council Member Rivera.

         20                 Welcome, Council Member Rivera, such

         21  a handsome young man.

         22                 Would you identify yourself for the

         23  record and begin your testimony, please?

         24                 MS. HANSEN: Yes. I'm the mother of

         25  Police Officer Kenny Hansen. Can you hear me?
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          2  Usually I have a big mouth.

          3                 I didn't come prepared with anything

          4  written, I'm talking from my heart.

          5                 Kenny was to a lot of people a lot of

          6  things. He was to be married in three months, he was

          7  a cousin, he was a good friend. To this day, it's

          8  going to be ten years, June 11th, I still go to the

          9  fairs, people come up to me and say, oh, Mrs.

         10  Hansen, you know I worked with your son. Mrs.

         11  Hansen, you don't know me but when my son died,

         12  Kenny came to the house and asked, do you want me to

         13  go shopping for you, do you want me to do things?

         14                 Kenny had a heart of goal. He had a

         15  peewee team in St. Thomas Parish, he used to take

         16  all the little kids. As you can see, my son that

         17  left the room, the family's been totally destroyed

         18  by what has happened to Kenny.

         19                 Coming from a police family, my

         20  father was a police officer, his father, the girl he

         21  was going to marry, it's just a tragic thing, and I

         22  think by naming this street, it would give us, I

         23  could take my grandchildren, as they say to me now,

         24  grandma, why don't we see Kenny? Why don't we see

         25  Kenny? Can we let these balloons off to Heaven for
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          2  Kenny? Why? This way I could bring them to the

          3  street and they would know what a hero his brother

          4  was.

          5                 Considering, as you heard, he had

          6  saved somebody's life only two days before that in

          7  the same spot where he went down.

          8                 I don't know what else to tell you.

          9  He was a heart of gold. And to be on Cardinal

         10  O'Connor's agenda, I know where Kenny is right now.

         11  And I guess I'm just trying to speak from the heart.

         12  I don't know what else to tell you, he did a lot for

         13  a lot of people. To this day I'm still dealing with

         14  everything.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         16  much. It's obvious why he was so kind.

         17                 MS. HANSEN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: He not only

         19  looked like you, but the kindness there, as well.

         20                 I'm reminded of, as Peter Vallone

         21  said, I often refer to a higher authority, and I

         22  remember in one of the psalms it says that "I shall

         23  not die but I shall live and declare the works of

         24  the Lord."

         25                 MS. HANSEN: I believe that. I have
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          2  to.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you. God

          4  bless you.

          5                 Captain.

          6                 Thank you very much, Ma'am. Very

          7  courageous for you to come and do this.

          8                 Captain Tuffey.

          9                 CAPTAIN TUFFEY: Good morning, Mr.

         10  Chairman, Council Members.

         11                 I am Captain Peter Tuffey, the

         12  Commanding Officer of the 61st Precinct. On behalf

         13  of Police Commissioner Kerik, and the Commanding

         14  Officer of Patrol Borough Brooklyn South, Assistant

         15  Chief Joseph Fox, I would like to thank you for

         16  affording me the opportunity to speak to you today

         17  to consider renaming Coney Island Avenue between

         18  Gravesend Neck Road (phonetic) and Avenue W in honor

         19  of the late Police Officer Kenneth Hansen.

         20                 On June 11th, 1991, Police Officer

         21  Hansen drowned while participating in an air/sea

         22  rescue training exercise in the waters off of the

         23  tip of Manhattan.

         24                 Prior to his assignment to the Harbor

         25  Unit, Officer Hansen worked in the 61st Precinct,
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          2  along with this brother Jimmy, who remains assigned

          3  to the 61st Precinct as a sergeant.

          4                 Therefore, it is only fitting that

          5  the street in front of the 61st Precinct

          6  stationhouse remains in Police Officer Kenneth

          7  Hansen's honor.

          8                 A memory of Officer Hansen will be

          9  everlasting, as we look upon the street in front of

         10  the 61st Precinct, as Police Officer Kenneth Hansen

         11  Way.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

         14  Captain.

         15                 Are there any questions?

         16                 Council Member Golden.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Just one last.

         18  Two things that I know the Speaker spoke just

         19  shortly before he left, and it is on the agenda of

         20  Cardinal O'Connor. Both Cardinal O'Connor and the

         21  Speaker were the first to respond to any officer,

         22  and Cardinal O'Connor held police officers very,

         23  very close to him, and I'm sure that your son is

         24  close to him right now.

         25                 MS. HANSEN: I believe that police
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          2  officers are shepherds, all of them, whether it be

          3  my son or whatever.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Ms. Hansen?

          5                 MS. HANSEN: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Years ago they

          7  had a song, long before you were born.

          8                 MS. HANSEN: Oh, you don't know how

          9  old I am.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: "You must have

         11  been a beautiful baby." Doesn't she have a beautiful

         12  smile?

         13                 MS. HANSEN: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: God bless you.

         15                 Do you have the photographs?

         16                 MS. HANSEN: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I wanted to make

         18  sure you got them back.

         19                 MS. HANSEN: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: May I say this,

         21  please, that all of you who came here for Patrolman

         22  Hansen, we don't have to testify, it's been our

         23  procedure here, is everyone who sign in need not

         24  testify because it would be repetitious.

         25                 What we would like for you to do,
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          2  just for the record, sit you here, to please come to

          3  the microphone, identify yourself by name and simply

          4  say that you are for or against. I'm sure no one is

          5  against, all right?

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 MS. HANSEN: I just want to tell you,

          8  my son had to leave, he got very emotional.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I can understand

         10  that.

         11                 MS. HANSEN: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Would you, those

         13  of you who are here just come and say who you are,

         14  I'm, whoever I am, and I'm in favor, so it will be

         15  on the record, and that way we will have given

         16  everyone a chance.

         17                 MR. HANSEN: John Hansen, Kenny

         18  Hansen's father. I'm definitely for this.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         20                 Who are you, sir?

         21                 MR. HANSEN: Kenny Hansen's father.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: The father?

         23                 MR. HANSEN: Yes, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: God bless you.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thirty-two

          3  years on the New York City Police Department.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You were a

          5  detective for 32 years. You're still looking good,

          6  sir. God takes care of his own. God bless you, and

          7  thank you for giving to us a son, all right?

          8                 MS. SHEA: I am Police Officer Shiela

          9  Shea. I worked with Kenny for over three years, and

         10  when Kenny went to Harbor, he never left the 61, he

         11  was always a part of the 61, and we're the ones that

         12  miss him the most, which is why it's in front of

         13  Coney Island Avenue, in front of the 61

         14  Stationhouse, and I am definitely for this.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You are in favor?

         16                 MS. SHEA: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Officer?

         20                 MR. SALUCA: I am Officer Saluca from

         21  the 61 Precinct. I worked with Ken briefly.

         22                 I just want to tell you what happened

         23  the first day I went to the 61. I was a member out

         24  of the academy, I walked in, I looked around and

         25  said, what am I getting myself into. I looked in the
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          2  crowd and there was Kenny with the biggest smile and

          3  he shook his head, he goes, don't worry about it,

          4  everything will be all right. Now, every day, 15

          5  years later, I look at a cop, I say the same thing

          6  with the biggest smile, shake my hand and say don't

          7  worry about it, everything will be all right, and

          8  Kenny is always going to be in my heart, and I'm in

          9  favor.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

         11  Officer. Very kind.

         12                 MR. CARLPIN: My name is Police

         13  Officer Carlpin, and I work in the 61st Precinct,

         14  and I'm definitely in favor of this street being

         15  named after Police Officer Kenneth Hansen.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         17  much, sir.

         18                 MR BAILEY: My name is Police Officer

         19  Jim Baily, the 61st Precinct. I'm very much in favor

         20  of the bill for Kenny Hansen Way.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 MR. NG: I'm Police Officer Tommy Ng,

         24  from the 61st Precinct. I'm in favor of the bill.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very
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          2  much, sir.

          3                 MR. NICHOLSON: Good morning. I am

          4  Sergeant Gerard Nicholson. I didn't know Kenny, but

          5  I know his brother Jimmy very well. I'm sure Kenny

          6  was very similar to Jimmy, and apples don't fall far

          7  from trees. I'm in favor.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Is there anyone else here for this?

         11                 Would you please excuse me for one

         12  minute? I would like to go speak to Ms. Hansen.

         13                 Are there any comments by the Council

         14  Members?

         15                 (Off the record.)

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: My daughter is in

         17  England, having just finished a tour in South

         18  Africa. I love her dearly, but she's cost me a lot

         19  of money because she is being responsible, and I say

         20  please call me at least a couple of times a day so I

         21  know how you're doing. And, so, the last call was a

         22  reminder that I want you to know that you're paying

         23  for these telephone calls. When you love family

         24  members, it's worth it.

         25                 The next intro is one that I take
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          2  pride in. Andrew Robinson was a great friend. A

          3  humble man, an outstanding individual, a man who

          4  found faith in God Almighty, and he trusted and

          5  loved mankind, humankind, I should say. And there is

          6  nothing unkind that I can think of about Andrew

          7  Robinson, there could only be kind things to say

          8  about him. But instead of my taking all the time, he

          9  has family members here, and we have a lot of people

         10  to testify, and we are going to ask, we want to hear

         11  you all, but if you can be brief, please, and some

         12  can just do as others did, simply say you're in

         13  favor.

         14                 First of all, Mr. Robinson's son,

         15  would you come, please?

         16                 Is that Frank or Franz?

         17                 Franz Robinson, take a seat there,

         18  please.

         19                 Ms. Hicks, where are you? Would you

         20  come? Are you the one that called me and insisted we

         21  do this?

         22                 And I had to shut you up and say,

         23  don't tell me, don't ask me any longer, we'll get it

         24  done? And, so, I'm glad you came to see that we kept

         25  our word.
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          2                 Now, there was another Robinson here,

          3  too, who is the brother, I believe; is that right?

          4  Would you come, please? And other relatives here. We

          5  are going to hear the others later, but we thought

          6  we would hear the relatives.

          7                 You are Mr. Willie Robinson, God

          8  bless you.

          9                 Sergeant, put a seat there.

         10                 Mr. Franz, if you will begin. Ms.

         11  Hicks and then Willie Robinson.

         12                 Just identify yourself for the

         13  record. Who is going first? All right, just tell us

         14  who you are.

         15                 MS. HICKS: Good morning, and God

         16  bless everyone.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good morning, God

         18  bless you.

         19                 MS. HICKS: And I appreciate for you

         20  inviting us here on behalf of my father Andrew

         21  Robinson.

         22                 I am very happy --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: We know how you

         24  feel, and we loved him as well, so if you can't

         25  finish your testimony, your presence --
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          2                 MS. HICKS: Well, I'm very happy that

          3  you did dedicate this street to my father. He was a

          4  very kind man, and like you said, and Reverend Green

          5  spoke at his funeral, he was out to help everyone,

          6  even as old as he was at 83 years old when he died,

          7  he helped all the senior citizens, as well as the

          8  young people, whenever they was needing help from my

          9  father.

         10                 I will let my brother take it over.

         11                 Franz, please talk for daddy.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Ms.

         13  Hicks.

         14                 Who is going next? Franz, will you?

         15                 Would you get her a tissue, please.

         16  It's all right, Mr. Franz Robinson.

         17                 MR. ROBINSON: Good morning, City

         18  Council.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good morning.

         20                 MR. ROBINSON: I want to take this

         21  opportunity for thanking you all for --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Just bring the

         23  mike a little closer and speak a little louder so we

         24  can hear you.

         25                 MR. ROBINSON: I would like to take
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          2  this opportunity for thanking you all for honoring

          3  my dad's name to be put up as Anthony Robinson

          4  Place. I'm truly honored to be here this morning to

          5  speak of my dad, you know, for my dad. You know, I

          6  can just imagine him looking down and seeing what's

          7  going on for him.

          8                 I spent the last 24 hours, I couldn't

          9  even sleep last night just thinking about this

         10  moment. This is such a pleasant and trying moment

         11  for me for me to get up here and talk about my dad.

         12                 There is not enough positive

         13  affirmations to describe the character of my dad.

         14                 This man has done so much. You know,

         15  he was just great leader and architect, you know, of

         16  his own destiny, for the destiny of the community,

         17  and in outside the community.

         18                 He has drawn so many people together

         19  to come together and to do so much to work in hand

         20  with one another in that community. Such a highly

         21  respected and honorable man. I just can't describe

         22  just so many, so many words, and infinite words that

         23  I can like think of to go on about this man.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         25  much. We understand, Mr. Robinson. You're right,
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          2  there is a hymm that says "oh, for 1,000 tongues to

          3  sing." If you had 1,000 tongues you could speak in

          4  1,000 different ways, you still couldn't say all

          5  there is to be said about Andrew Robinson.

          6                 MR. ROBINSON: Thank you so much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you so

          8  much.

          9                 Mr. Willie Robinson, please.

         10                 MR. ROBINSON: To the Council, and

         11  members of the Board, it's a great pleasure to be

         12  here today in honor of my brother. Nothing could be

         13  said too much about him in the community where he

         14  went through. I will just read a little script I

         15  have here.

         16                 In relation to the Street Andrew

         17  Robinson Place, the Borough of the Bronx, I, Willie

         18  Robinson, Sr., am in full support of this proposed

         19  street naming.  Andrew Robinson was a community

         20  leader, who worked tirelessly to see that his

         21  community was as strong one, and well represented in

         22  the city government.

         23                 Naming a street in his memory would

         24  honor the legacy of community support, which he has

         25  left to continue. When the Council passes this
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          2  legislation it will set a milestone for a great

          3  community leader. So, we thank God that we vote this

          4  up.

          5                 He often spoke of you, Councilman

          6  Foster, what a good man you were. So, we thank God

          7  for your bringing this up. As the community can go

          8  on, they will see what a great leader he was.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         10  much, the Robinson family.

         11                 I will call the others.

         12                 Before you are excused, we used to

         13  supply brother Robinson with food for the seniors,

         14  and he would drive his van, and once he ran out and

         15  came to get some from my church and said, you know,

         16  I've got to feed those seniors. And he always talked

         17  about seniors as other people, and I had to remind

         18  him, you know, brother Robinson, both of us are

         19  seniors now. But he never allowed age to stop him.

         20                 He was, like my brother said, age was

         21  just a number.

         22                 Thank you for coming. We are going to

         23  hear from others. You can be sure we will do the

         24  right thing.

         25                 MR. ROBINSON: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 I'm going to call now my subway

          5  buddy, Lee Ezell. She's not feeling well but I knew

          6  she'd be here. And Ms. Hatch, would you come,

          7  please. And Carolyn Jones, please. We have three

          8  chairs there, we'd like to fill them all.

          9                 Carolyn, would you come? Where are

         10  you? Didn't I see you? Yes, thank you.

         11                 This is being recorded for the

         12  record, so I'd simply like for you all to identify

         13  yourselves by name and give testimony, please.

         14                 Ms. Ezell, if you have anything to

         15  pass, just give it to the Sergeant.

         16                 Ms. Ezell, would you please begin?

         17                 MS. EZELL: Thank you.

         18                 Good morning, members of the Council.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good morning. You

         20  sound much stronger than you did on the subway.

         21                 MS. EZELL: It's the mike. It's the

         22  mike.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Is that it? Okay,

         24  thank you.

         25                 MS. EZELL: Greetings to the Robinson
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          2  family, ladies and gentlemen, and a special greeting

          3  and thanks to Council Member Foster, my Councilman,

          4  for introducing this body to the community's wish to

          5  honor Andrew Robinson.

          6                 My name is D. Ezell. I'm a community

          7  advocate. I have lived and worked in the Bronx for

          8  over 30 years.

          9                 I'm the Executive Director of

         10  Clarimont Home-owners and Tenants Civic Improvement

         11  Corporation, and also chair of the Municipal

         12  Services Committee of Community Board 4.

         13                 In both positions I succeeded Mr.

         14  Robinson after working closely with him for over

         15  seven years.

         16                 Today I'd like to share what I

         17  believe to be the general sentiment and consensus of

         18  the community which is within the resolution

         19  recommended by the Municipal Services Committee to

         20  Community Board 4, regarding a tribute to Andrew

         21  Robinson.

         22                 There was a motion in the Committee,

         23  carried unanimously, that because of his service and

         24  devotion to this community, the inspiration he gave

         25  to all as an active community leader, he is worthy
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          2  of this honor.

          3                 The Committee recommended that

          4  regarding Clay Avenue, between 169th and 170th

          5  Street in the Bronx, City of New York, that at this

          6  place a man lived, raised a family and was a friend

          7  to many, that because of this place, a man dedicated

          8  himself and his resources to the betterment of his

          9  community for over 44 years, that from this place

         10  and on a daily basis, a man, Andrew Robinson,

         11  inspired and supported family, friends and the

         12  community at large becoming worthy of honor.

         13                 The Committee further requested the

         14  Board's wholehearted support for this place to be

         15  renamed Andrew Robinson Place. The Board voted in

         16  favor unanimously, and we ask the Council to vote

         17  the same.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Okay, Ms. Ezeell,

         20  well said. Thank you very much.

         21                 Ms. Hatch, would you identify

         22  yourself and begin your testimony?

         23                 MS. HATCH: My name is Louella Hatch,

         24  and I'm the President of the 46th Precinct Community

         25  Council and a director of the Tiebout Community
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          2  Center, where we have a food pantry.

          3                 And to the family of Andrew Robinson,

          4  Council Member Foster and all the entire Council,

          5  I've known Andrew Johnson for 36 years, and not only

          6  was he committed to the community, he was committed

          7  to God. And being a volunteer, it's kind of hard for

          8  me to speak about Andrew Robinson, and I'm saying to

          9  all, each and every one of the Council members, to

         10  please vote yes for the street changing of Andrew

         11  Robinson.

         12                 A lot of times volunteers go

         13  unnoticed, and at a later date I would like to ask

         14  the City Councilman, as I go around in other cities,

         15  I see that some of the streets are named before a

         16  person passes away. I know by now that Andrew

         17  Robinson has joined hands with Father O'Connor, and

         18  the Police Officer, and I truly believe they're

         19  having church there. And if he was here today, he

         20  would be smiling, but since he's not here, he's

         21  looking down on us, and I want you to know that we

         22  are all asking you to please vote for him,

         23  sincerely.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  much.

          3                 Ms. Jones represents, I'm sure you

          4  represent the Assemblywoman, but you also represent

          5  yourself. Carolyn Jones is one of the finest people

          6  I know. You will speak on behalf of Assemblymember

          7  Greene.

          8                 MS. JONES: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: There are a lot

         10  of people who signed on behalf of this legislation,

         11  but we thank them for doing so, but we were going to

         12  do it anyway, so it just makes us do it a little

         13  quicker, all right?

         14                 Ms. Jones, identify yourself for the

         15  record and give your testimony.

         16                 MS. JONES: Praise the Lord. Good

         17  morning. My name is Carolyn D. Jones, and as you

         18  said, I'm here to represent Assemblywoman Greene, as

         19  well as myself.

         20                 The psalms tell us in the Bible that

         21  the steps of a righteous man is ordered by the Lord,

         22  and I can truly say that Mr. Robinson's steps was

         23  ordered by God. He believed in the scripture that

         24  you should love the Lord, Thy God, with all thy

         25  heart, with all thy soul, with all thy might, and
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          2  that you should love your neighbor as yourself, and

          3  Mr. Robinson was a quiet spirited man, but he got a

          4  lot of things done. He was a humble man, he was a

          5  sincere man, and I knew him for over 15 years, I

          6  loved him, I respected him, and I enjoyed working

          7  with him and for him. And on behalf of Assemblywoman

          8  Aurelia Greene, I would just like to read a

          9  statement that she wrote, and I think it is all so

         10  fitting, before I start this statement, to say that

         11  Mr. Robinson is being honored this day before the

         12  City Council to rename a street where he lived and

         13  worked on the same day that some 38 years ago that

         14  Dr. Reverend Martin Luther King, Jr., was

         15  assassinated, and he has a lot of characteristics as

         16  our Dr. Martin Luther King did. His spirit was

         17  genuine, it was true, he was a humble man, and he

         18  was a man of God, as Dr. Reverend Martin Luther King

         19  was. And on behalf of Assemblywoman Greene, the

         20  letter reads:

         21                 On behalf of the family of the late

         22  honorable Andrew Robinson, I am requesting the

         23  renaming of Clay Avenue, from East 169th Street to

         24  East 170th Street, the Andrew Robinson Place.

         25                 Mr. Robinson, our former Democratic
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          2  district leader, and past chairperson of Community

          3  Board 4, was a well respected and effective civic

          4  leader who dedicated over 50 years of faithful

          5  service to his Claremont Community.

          6                 In recognition of that service, I

          7  have attached a petition signed by his neighbors in

          8  support of Andrew Robinson Way or Place street

          9  renaming. His leadership resulted in trees planting,

         10  annual community beautification and garden projects,

         11  safety patrols and programs for the elderly.

         12                 Mr. Robinson was president and

         13  founder of the Claremont Homeowners and Civic

         14  Improvement Association, member of the 44th Precinct

         15  Council and Chairperson of the seniors and Law

         16  Enforcement Together Council.

         17                 I can think of no better or fitting

         18  tribute to Mr. Robinson, than to rename the street

         19  where he lived and worked for the betterment of his

         20  community.

         21                 I thank you for being here today in

         22  support of the renaming of this street on behalf of

         23  Assemblywoman Greene, and I thank the City Council

         24  and Council Member Wendell Foster for submitting

         25  this legislation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Mr. Robles knew I was Chairman of the

          5  Parks Committee, and every time he would see a tree

          6  planted in some other neighborhood, he would remind

          7  me, what about my neighborhood. So, off the record,

          8  let me close this.

          9                 (Off the record.)

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 I'm going to call Mr. Anderson and

         12  Mr. Benjamin, and while they are coming, I'm going

         13  to call for a roll call, some of our Council members

         14  must leave, but I want those of you who are here, I

         15  want to thank you, Ms. Jones, again, God bless -- I

         16  mean, Ms. Hatch. Those of you who are here, I want

         17  you to see that our Council Members are going to do

         18  the right thing.

         19                 Roll call. Just be seated gentlemen,

         20  we will come back to you. We're going to keep the

         21  vote open for Ms. Robinson, please.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Aye on all, and

         24  put me as prime, if I am not already. Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Povman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fisher.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Briefly, Mr.

          6  Chairman. Aye on all, and I particularly want to

          7  call attention, we just had Cardinal O'Connor's

          8  street naming, because I think that that has

          9  received overwhelming acclaim and public

         10  recognition, but I'd like to spend a moment just on

         11  the street name for Police Officer Hansen, because I

         12  was moved by the story of him giving his life in the

         13  line of duty, someone who had risked his life more

         14  than once in an all too short career with the New

         15  York City Police Department. And if just one young

         16  person walks by that street sign and says who was

         17  this person and what did he do to cause the City of

         18  New York to honor him this way, our efforts today

         19  will be more than worthwhile.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I wanted Ms.

         22  Hansen to hear that before she leaves.

         23                 All right, continue the roll call.

         24                 Thank you, Council Member Fisher.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Linares.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Mr. Chair,

          3  may I be excused to explain my vote?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: You may be

          5  excused.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I vote aye. I

          7  want to echo the remarks of my colleagues, and I

          8  would like to be added to be a prime sponsor of

          9  every single one of these legislations.

         10                 I believe that when we look at the

         11  recognition that we're giving to exemplary New

         12  Yorkers as we're doing today, two in the Bronx, one

         13  in Brooklyn, one the entire New York, our Cardinal,

         14  and as a Catholic, this is a high honor for me,

         15  having seen his leadership of Cardinal O'Connor in

         16  time of need and of crisis for this City and for the

         17  world.

         18                 When there was a hurricane in the

         19  Caribbean, he was there, marching to the rescue, and

         20  when there was a crisis here, he was there. So, I'm

         21  honored to be a sponsor.

         22                 Police officer Hansen, I only regret

         23  that we lost him so young, but he was so

         24  accomplished because of what he had done so far. And

         25  I think it's a tribute that New York is a great City

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS AND RECREATION

          2  as it is, because we have New Yorkers that have made

          3  a tremendous difference for those who remain, and

          4  for Mr. Robinson, he worked in the livery industry.

          5  I paid my way through college driving a livery, and

          6  then three years a livery, two years a yellow, in

          7  the seventies, in the Bronx when I used to be a

          8  livery driver, so I see that whether we look at a

          9  police officer or someone hurting, helping our

         10  neighborhood, through leadership or their religious

         11  leaders that we have, this is what makes this great

         12  City great, and I think when all of us come together

         13  to acknowledge that leadership we're the better off,

         14  so I vote yes. And I thank you, Mr. Chair, for

         15  allowing me the opportunity to make these remarks.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Linares.

         18                 Continue the roll call.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes on

         21  all.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Aye on all, and

         25  would like to be listed as a prime, and want to
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          2  thank the family members for coming and speaking to

          3  us today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

          5  Council Member Reed.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Rivera.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote yes on

          8  all and I would also like to be a primary sponsor of

          9  this legislation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

         11  Council Member.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Golden.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I'd like to

         15  vote aye. I'd like to be excused to explain my vote.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Of course.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I didn't speak

         18  on the Cardinal, but I think it's fitting for all.

         19                 I'd like to thank Congressman Vito

         20  Fossella and Senator Schuman for sponsoring the bill

         21  that gave the congressional gold medal to the

         22  cardinal, and I'd also like to commend, and I don't

         23  think it was mentioned earlier, that when you see

         24  cleric life today, it's on the decline, and the

         25  Sisters of Life, which is a group of sisters that
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          2  was started by Cardinal O'Connor, and it's an

          3  organization and an order that's on the rise, and

          4  it's to be, and they are to be commended for their

          5  great service to the poor and to the unwanted

          6  children and to life of children.

          7                 There's a little parable in the

          8  gospel it goes, when I was hungry you did not feed

          9  me, when I was thirsty you did not give me the

         10  drink, when I was naked you did not clothe me, when

         11  I was sick you did not care for me, when I was

         12  jailed you did not come to visit me, and it goes on,

         13  and the response is, Jesus, when did I see you

         14  hungry, when did I see you thirsty and not give you

         15  the drink, or naked and not to clothe me, and Jesus

         16  response was, you do that to the least of my people,

         17  you do unto me. And Cardinal O'Connor and all of

         18  those being here today that are asked to be honoring

         19  on those street names worked with the homeless,

         20  worked with the AIDS cases, worked with the unwanted

         21  children, worked with those in most in need in the

         22  City of New York, and I commend all of the families

         23  that are here today, and may God bless each and

         24  every one of their family members.

         25                 God bless you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

          3  Council Member.

          4                 We are keeping the vote open for

          5  Council Member Robinson.

          6                 Please announce the vote.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of eight in

          8  the affirmative, none in the negative, and no

          9  abstentions, the items are adopted, the vote remains

         10  open. Please sign the reports.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Ladies and

         12  gentlemen, you got what you came for.

         13                 I have two witnesses, I simply knew

         14  that Mr. Fisher and others, I believe -- when is our

         15  next Stated Council meeting? On the 17th, listen to

         16  me carefully, on the 17th you need not come down,

         17  the fact that we passed it here, it will be passed

         18  at the Stated Council Meeting. Then when the Mayor

         19  signs it, is ready to sign this into law, Al will

         20  let us know, and we will make sure that you are

         21  notified. You can come down for the signing, and

         22  then collectively we can decide when you would like

         23  to have these streets dedicated.

         24                 I've tried to be at as many as I can

         25  when they are done, but this has been to me a more
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          2  than just a Council hearing, it's been a spiritual

          3  uplift.

          4                 If I would put my other hat on, I

          5  would simply say, God was in this room today.

          6                 God bless you.

          7                 All right, Mr. Anderson and then Mr.

          8  Benjamin.

          9                 MR. ANDERSON: Yes.

         10                 My name is James Anderson. My name is

         11  James Anderson, a retired lieutenant in the U.S.

         12  Army, Special Unit. And one of the things that I

         13  would like to thank the Council for and make a

         14  remark, is that it was so easy for me to walk into

         15  this building to give my testimony.

         16                 First of all, I'm from Birmingham,

         17  Alabama. The first march over the bridge to

         18  Montgomery wasn't too easy, so we was turned around.

         19  The second march we were successful and then from

         20  Montgomery to the Capitol.

         21                 As working for the Birmingham Time

         22  Newspaper, looking out the window one day, I see

         23  there was a Kelly Ingram Park (phonetic), and, so, I

         24  didn't know anything about politics and I started

         25  writing in the newspaper, and so the owner and the
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          2  manager came to me and told me I couldn't do this

          3  because I was upsetting the political arena in

          4  Birmingham Alabama.

          5                 So, anyway, I was granted an

          6  interview by Eugene Brewer Connor, and I went in and

          7  he referred me to the Deputy Mayor, and we drew the

          8  blueprint because I didn't know how City politics

          9  worked, and we together named the Martin Luther King

         10  and Kelly Ingram Park. And because we had only one

         11  black financial person that was able, which AG

         12  Gaston gave me the privilege to carry the papers,

         13  and this is the reason why I'm bringing this up.

         14                 And, so, years later, the Kelly

         15  Ingram Park, as you know about the 16th Street

         16  Baptist bombing of the four girls, we have what we

         17  call our first civil rights museum, and they do give

         18  me great honor when I do visit my home town to see

         19  this, but what makes it so special today, it was so

         20  easy for me to come through the gate and come in

         21  here and give a testimony without fighting or

         22  bloodshed. And I think that it's a great honor, not

         23  only for me being able to give my testimony and be

         24  on the record with Cardinal O'Connor, but it reminds

         25  me of all the years that we marched up and down the
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          2  street.

          3                 One of the things that daddy, and I

          4  know for myself, because I was his son-in-law, that

          5  he had been upstate with groups of older people, and

          6  the bus broke down, the big red bus broke down and

          7  he didn't have no way to get back home, but, yet,

          8  and still, they sit beside the highway until

          9  somebody else volunteered.

         10                 An amazing thing about this is I

         11  couldn't figure out how a cab driver could own five

         12  homes in the same neighborhood.

         13                 I couldn't figure out that, you know,

         14  like you driving a cab, how can you invest your life

         15  savings and own -- you have to believe in the

         16  community, even buy five homes in the same street in

         17  the neighborhood.

         18                 Also, I realize that he was there,

         19  not only as a son-in-law but his grandchildren to

         20  break ground for the guards, and to make the

         21  different plots and to have dirt put there. I also

         22  realize now, after he's gone, within several months

         23  the community center closed down, so I know that he

         24  must have been the backbone of the community. Not

         25  that, no one, I don't think, could ever take his
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          2  place, you know. I hoped that I would be able, I

          3  talked to my wife, and I hope that I would be able

          4  to do some volunteer work, I don't know. But I know

          5  that he was an outstanding person. I thank you all.

          6  I'm a long ways from Birmingham, Alabama, and this

          7  is the honor. You all got it made up here. I thank

          8  you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Mr. Anderson,

         10  thank you.

         11                 When you speak of Birmingham and that

         12  park, you are speaking of my home, as well.

         13                 MR. ANDERSON: Then you know AG

         14  Gaston.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: AG Gaston

         16  discovered I was an orphan, and could not join the

         17  Boys Club, so he enrolled me in the Boys Club and

         18  sent me away to summer camps.

         19                 MR. ANDERSON: That's right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: I earned my

         21  living, to pay my room, rent, by selling peanuts in

         22  front of that park.

         23                 MR. ANDERSON: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: But I was not

         25  allowed to go into that park and play because it was
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          2  reserved for white people only.

          3                 MR. ANDERSON: That's right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: The first time I

          5  was beaten up by a policeman was when I was told by

          6  the teacher to go to the library, and I didn't have

          7  sense enough to know that I shouldn't have gone to

          8  the downtown library, and instead of the policeman

          9  telling me that I was not allowed to go in there

         10  because I was a negro, as they called us then, he

         11  simply decided to take it out on my head.

         12                 I know Birmingham well. The first

         13  Mayor was not my classmate, but my schoolmate, at

         14  Miles College.

         15                 MR. ANDERSON: Arington.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Arington.

         17                 MR. ANDERSON: Richard Arington.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: And I, too,

         19  marched to Montgomery.

         20                 MR. ANDERSON: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: And many people

         22  don't know what a struggle we put up just to claim

         23  our citizenship.

         24                 We fought to liberate and keep this

         25  country free when those that we liberated, as well
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          2  as those who fought to destroy this country, were

          3  brought here and given privileges as they still are,

          4  in and above what we are allowed to enjoy.

          5                 You brought memories back, both good

          6  and bad. In the bombing, the young lady that I

          7  called my sweetheart was my classmate, and it was

          8  her daughter, one of the ladies was her daughter

          9  that was killed.

         10                 It's ironic they were in Sunday

         11  school on a Sunday morning, and the subject of the

         12  Sunday school lesson that morning was God is love.

         13  Some finatic decided to blow them up and the church

         14  and the state, and the federal government thought

         15  nothing wrong with it for a long time. When they

         16  called the President of the United States, who was

         17  John Kennedy, he said he would comment after he

         18  finished taking his child on a boat ride. That was

         19  contempt they had for us.

         20                 Mr. Benjamin.

         21                 MR. BENJAMIN: Good morning, Council

         22  Member, and Council members.

         23                 My name is Michael Benjamin, I'm here

         24  representing the Bronx Unity Democratic Club, and

         25  our district leader is Reverend Jerome Green, and
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          2  Hilda Alvarez. My remarks will be short.

          3                 On behalf of our Board, we want to

          4  support the Council and go on record in support of

          5  the Andrew Robinson Place, from Ninth Street to East

          6  170th Street on Clay Avenue.

          7                 That's the remarks, and I will also

          8  say that, you know, today is truly a day that God

          9  has made in recognition of Cardinal O'Connor, Ray

         10  Cilento, and Police Officer Hansen, that we also

         11  have Andrew Robinson.

         12                 I think it's important for our young

         13  people, particularly young African Americans in our

         14  district in the 60th Council District, to recognize

         15  that we have fine African-American men who need to

         16  be recognized and remembered and they also should

         17  give of themselves in civic service and in religious

         18  service to our community.

         19                 I want to thank you for having us.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         22  much, Mr. Benjamin.

         23                 I thank you all for coming.

         24                 Ms. Hatch, you gave me a note and we

         25  shall investigate that, in reference to another
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          2  policeman that was killed in our district, killed in

          3  our district, and we should do what we can.

          4                 May I thank all of you for coming,

          5  and, Al, thank you. And if there is nothing else,

          6  Council Members, I wish to thank them for their

          7  time, And Frank, for his diligence, and my lawyer

          8  for keeping me out of jail.

          9                 Thank you very much. We stand

         10  adjourned.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 12:35 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 4th day of April 2001.
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